
 
 
 

 
Despatched: 18.03.14 

 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

26 March 2014 at 7.00 pm 

Conference Room, Argyle Road, Sevenoaks 
 

AGENDA 

 
Membership: 

 
Chairman: Cllr. Ramsay  Vice-Chairman: Cllr. McGarvey 

Cllrs. Mrs. Bayley, Brookbank, Cooke, Mrs. Davison, Edwards-Winser, Mrs. Sargeant, 

Scholey and Walshe 

 

 
 

Apologies for Absence 

 

Pages Contact 

1. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 6)  

 To agree the Minutes of the meeting of the 

Committee held on 21 January 2014, as a correct 

record. 

  

2. Declarations of Interest    

 Any interests not already registered   

3. Actions from Previous Meeting 

 

(Pages 7 - 8) 

 
 

 

4. Update from Portfolio Holder 

 

 

 
Councillor 

Brian Ramsay 

5. Referrals from Cabinet or the Audit Committee (if 

any)  

  

 None   

6. Establishment of a Local Authority Trading 

Company Structure  

(Pages 9 - 20) 

 
Christine 

Nuttall 

Tel: 01732 

227245 
7. Rural Broadband  (Pages 21 - 34) 

 
Lesley Bowles 

Tel: 01732 

227335 
8. Financial Results 2013/14 - To the end of January 

2014  

(Pages 35 - 70) 

 
Helen Martin 

Tel: 01732 

227483 
9. Financial Performance Indicators 2013/14 - to the 

end of January 2014  

(Pages 71 - 76) 

 
Helen Martin 

Tel: 01732 

227483 
10. Work Plan  (Pages 77 - 78) 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

EXEMPT ITEMS 

Consideration of Exempt Information 

Recommendation: That, under section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 

public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the ground that 

likely disclosure of exempt information is involved as defined by paragraph 3 (Information 

relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority 

holding that information) as identified in Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 

1972. 

 

11. White Oak Leisure Centre Asset Maintenance - 

Update  

(Pages 79 - 94) 

 
Lesley Bowles 

Tel: 01732 

227335 
12. Asset Management Plan Update  (Pages 95 - 112) 

 
Andrew Robson 

Tel: 01732 

227209 
13. Investment Strategy  (Pages 113 - 122) 

 
Andrew Robson 

Tel: 01732 

227209 

To assist in the speedy and efficient despatch of business, Members wishing to obtain 

factual information on items included on the Agenda are asked to enquire of the appropriate  

Contact Officer named on a report prior to the day of the meeting. 

 

Should you require a copy of this agenda or any of the reports listed on it in another format 

please do not hesitate to contact the Democratic Services Team as set out below. 

 

For any other queries concerning this agenda or the meeting please contact: 

 

The Democratic Services Team (01732 227241) 

 

 

 

 

 



17 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 
Minutes of the meeting held on 21 January 2014 commencing at 7.00 pm 

 

 

Present: Cllr. Ramsay (Chairman) 

 

Cllr. McGarvey 

  

 Cllrs. Mrs. Bayley, Brookbank, Cooke, Mrs. Davison, Edwards-Winser, 

Mrs. Sargeant and Walshe 

 

 Cllrs. Mrs. Morris were also present. 

 

 

35. Minutes  

 
Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting of the Finance and Resources Advisory 

Committee held on 12 November 2013 be approved and signed by the Chairman 

as a correct record. 

 

36. Declarations of Interest  

 
No additional declarations of interest were made. 

 

37. Actions from Previous Meeting  

 
The actions from the previous meetings were noted. 

 

38. Update from Portfolio Holder  

 
The Chairman, and Portfolio Holder for Finance and Resources, updated the Committee 

on his work since the previous meeting of the Advisory Committee listed below:   

 

• 12 Knole Way had come in for completion 

• He had taken a Portfolio Holder decision to serve an eviction order on Rural Age 

Concern Darent Valley 

• Decking of car parks was being investigated. 

• Interest had ben shown by West Kent Housing and the local working men’s club in 

developing the site at Bevan Place, Swanley. 

• Timberden Farm – the agricultural lease would be running out soon so 

investigations into future options for the site are being considered. 

• The Government had yet to announce the council tax referendum threshold, and 

money within the Revenue Support Grant (RSG) had not been ring-fenced for 

Parish and Town Councils despite what had been stated by Brandon Lewis MP 

The Chief Finance Officer advised that he had participated in a conference call 

with a number of other local authorities and Brandon Lewis MP, where he had 

stated the announcement would not be within the next couple of days but would 

be before 12 February 2014. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



Finance and Resources Advisory Committee - 21 January 2014 

18 

 

• A number of small plots of land were still owned by the Council which had not 

been transferred when the housing stock was sold.  Options for disposing of these 

plots are being investigated. 

• He had hoped to be bringing a report to the committee on White Oak Leisure 

Centre but he had requested further work to be done before submission. 

 

39. Referrals from Cabinet or the Audit Committee  

 
There were none. 

 

40. Proposed Joint working project between Sevenoaks District Council and Tonbridge 

and Malling Borough Council on Building Control Services  

 
The Chief Officer Environmental & Operational Services presented a report proposing an 

operating model for joint working with Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council (T&MBC) 

for Building Control Services and recommending that a joint working arrangement be 

entered into. This would build on the previously shared management arrangements and 

would achieve efficiency savings for both Authorities and significantly increase the 

resilience of the Service by amalgamating two existing small teams into one larger team 

covering both Authorities. 

 

It was noted that a more detailed report would be considered by the Economic and 

Community Development Advisory Committee on 26 February 2014 before consideration 

at Cabinet on 6 March 2014. 

Resolved:  That it be recommended to Cabinet, and reported to the Economic and 

Community Development Advisory Committee that: 

a) in principle, and, subject to the views of the Economic and Community 

Development Advisory Committee the Council enter into an agreement with 

T&MBC for a joint working project for Building Control Services; 

b) the Portfolio Holder for Economic and Community Development be delegated 

the Authority to agree the Heads of Terms for a joint working Agreement; and 

c) the Portfolio Holder for Economic and Community Development be delegated 

the authority to approve any consequential actions required in order to 

implement the project. 

 

CHANGE OF AGENDA ITEM ORDER 

 

Agenda Item 11 was moved forward for consideration. 

 

41. Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15  

 

It was reported that the Local Government Act 2003 (the Act) and supporting regulations 

required the Council to ‘have regard to’ the Prudential Code and to set Prudential 

Indicators for the next three years to ensure that the Council’s capital investment plans 

are affordable, prudent and sustainable.  The Act therefore required the Council to set 

out its treasury strategy for borrowing and to prepare an Annual Investment Strategy (as 

Page 2

Agenda Item 1



Finance and Resources Advisory Committee - 21 January 2014 

19 

 

required by investment guidance issued subsequent to the Act) which set out the 

Council’s policies for managing its investments and for giving priority to the security and 

liquidity of those investments.  Members’ attention was drawn to paragraphs 61-64 of 

the report and Appendix F, which dealt with proposed changes to the investment criteria.  

The Principal Accountant explained that data referring to the capital programme had 

been left blank at this stage as it was still to be approved. 

Some Members were keen to open up to new counterparties, including banks in 

countries such as Sweden, Australia and Singapore that operated in the UK.  However it 

was agreed that this should be brought back for further consideration.   

Public Sector Equality Duty 

 

Members noted that consideration had been given to impacts under the Public Sector 

Equality Duty. 

 

Resolved:  That it be recommended to Cabinet that 

 

a) the following amended investment criteria be included in the Treasury 

Management Strategy for 2014/15: 

i) Maximum investment period of 2 years. 

ii) Investments in any single institution or institutions within a group of 

companies be limited to 25% of the total fund, at the time the investment 

is placed, except it be increased for Lloyds Banking Group plc and Royal 

Bank of Scotland Group plc to 30%. 

iii) Total investments in any one foreign country be limited to 15% of the total 

fund, but UK-based institutions to be used as first preference. 

iv) Investments in banks be limited to £6m per counterparty excluding call 

accounts and £7m including call accounts except for Lloyds Banking Group 

plc and Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc, where the limits would be £10m 

for each with no distinction between fixed deposits and call accounts. 

v) If the Council’s own banker, Barclays, falls below Capita Asset Services’ 

minimum credit rating requirements, it would nevertheless continue to be 

used, although balances would be minimised in both monetary size and 

duration. 

vi) Building Societies with assets in excess of £9bn be included in the lending 

list with a maximum investment limit of £2m each and a maximum 

duration of 100 days. If a Building Society meets Capita Asset Services’ 

minimum credit rating requirements, the investment limit be increased to 

£5m with a maximum duration of two years. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



Finance and Resources Advisory Committee - 21 January 2014 

20 

 

vii) Enhanced Money Market Funds (EMMF) to be used as an alternative to the 

existing standard Money Market Funds (MMF) with a combined maximum 

limit of £5m per provider. 

b) Property Funds with a limit of £5m in each not be included at this time; 

c) investments in non-UK banks not be included at this time, but the matter be 

brought before a future meeting of the Committee for further consideration; 

and 

d) it be recommended to Council to approve the amended Treasury 

Management Strategy for 2014/15. 

 

 

42. Capital and Asset Maintenance Budget 2014/15  

 
The Head of Finance presented a report which set out the proposed 2014/17 Capital 

Programme, with supporting documentation in a standard format for individual scheme 

bids.  An updated scheme bid for the vehicle replacement programme was tabled.  

Projected capital receipts were included, indicating the proposed financing of the 

Programme. A proposed overall provisional limit for Asset Maintenance was also made.   

 

Members were interested in the saleable value for the old generator.  It was noted that a 

report on asset maintenance at White Oak Leisure Centre was not before the Advisory 

Committee but would be considered at the next meeting. 

 

Action 1:  That the Head of Finance circulate to Members more details on the 

figures contained in paragraph 8 of the report. 

 

Public Sector Equality Duty 

 

Members noted that consideration had been given to impacts under the Public Sector 

Equality Duty. 

 

Resolved:  That it be recommended to Cabinet that 

a) the Capital Programme 2014/17 and funding method set out in Appendix B 

(and amended scheme bid) to the report, be approved; and 

b) the proposed Asset Maintenance budget of £469,000 for 2014/15, be 

agreed. 

 

43. Risks and Assumptions for Budget 2014/15  

 
Members views were requested on the risks and assumptions included in the 

appendices to the report.  The Draft Budget 2014/15 reported to Cabinet on 5 

December 2013 provided information on the key assumptions and risks included within 

the draft budget proposals and Cabinet were given a further update 9 January 2014.  

The risk assessment report before Members provided more detail on the assumptions 

and risks.   

 

Page 4

Agenda Item 1



Finance and Resources Advisory Committee - 21 January 2014 

21 

 

Resolved:  That the report be noted. 

 

44. Financial Performance Indicators 2013/14 - to the end of November 2013  

 
Members considered a report showing figures on seven internally set performance 

indicators covering activities that support information provided in the regular financial 

monitoring statements.  Members commented that it was a good positive report. 

 

Resolved:  That the report be noted. 

 

45. Financial Results 2013/14 - to the end of November 2013  

 
The report presented figures on internally set performance indicators for 2013/14 up to 

the end of November 2013, with comparative figures for the previous year.  Eight months 

into the year the results to date showed an overall favourable variance of £533,000, and 

the year-end position was forecast to be £49,000 better than budget.  The Head of 

Finance was able to comment on the December figures advising Members that there was 

now a £615,000 favourable variance and the year-end position was forecast to be 

£293,000 better than budget.  The expected variance was still only 0.58% of gross 

expenditure.  There were a variety of reasons for the savings, for example Direct Services 

had gained £65,000 further extra income.   

 

Resolved:  That the report and Comments by the Head of Finance, be noted. 

 

46. Work Plan  

 
It was noted that an additional meeting date had been set since the publication of the 

agenda.  The work plan would be amended accordingly to show that meeting would be 

considering White Oak and the asset management strategy. 

 

 

 

THE MEETING WAS CONCLUDED AT 8.47 PM 

 

 

 

 

CHAIRMAN 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



  

ACTIONS FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 21 JANUARY 2014 

Action Description Status and last updated Contact Officer 

ACTION 1 
That the Head of Finance circulate to Members 

more details on the figures contained in 

paragraph 8 of the report. 

 

An email was circulated to Members o the 

Advisory Committee on 24 January 2014 

Helen Martin 

 

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

ESTABLISHMENT OF LOCAL AUTHORITY TRADING COMPANY STRUCTURE 

Finance and Resources Advisory Committee – 26 March 2014 

 

Report of  Chief Officer Legal and Governance 

Status: For Decision 

Also considered by: Cabinet – 10 April 2014 

Key Decision: Yes 

Executive Summary: To authorise in principal the creation of a local authority trading 

company structure to facilitate opportunities for income generation in order to reduce 

the reliance on Government grants. 

This report supports the Key Aim of effective management of Council resources 

Portfolio Holder Cllr. Ramsey 

Contact Officer(s) Mrs. Christine Nuttall – Ext. 7245 

Recommendation to Cabinet:   

(a) That the Chief Officer Legal and Governance be authorised to incorporate a 

company wholly owned by the Council so as to allow the Council to exercise the 

power to trade contained in the Local Government Act 2003 and the Localism Act 

2011. 

(b) That the broad governance and funding arrangements for the trading company, 

as set out in this report, be approved and the Chief Officer Legal and Governance 

in consultation with the  Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer and Portfolio 

Holder for Finance and Resources be given delegated authority to settle the 

detailed arrangements for the establishment of the company. 

(c) That consideration be given by the Cabinet as appropriate to any individual 

business cases in respect of the use of the Council’s trading powers as part of 

the development of the future strategy for income generation.  

Reason for recommendation: To allow the Council to undertake trading activities in 

order to generate additional income in order to be less reliant on Government funding.  

Introduction and Background 

1 Following the recent Peer Challenge the Peer Review Team suggested that in order 

to enable the Council to become more self reliant as set out in its Corporate Plan, 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 

it would need to generate more income.  The legal framework to enable that to be 

achieved would require the Council to set up a trading company.   

2 This report proposes that Sevenoaks District Council (“SDC”) establishes a generic 

trading company, wholly owned by the Council, to enable the Council to take 

advantage of the powers to trade for profit introduced under the Local 

Government Act 2003 and the Localism Act 2011, where opportunities to do so 

arise and it is appropriate to use the company as a vehicle for the trading activity 

proposed. 

3 The legal framework to allow local authorities to undertake trading activities has 

become relaxed in recent years.  There are specific powers contained in the Local 

Government Act 2003 which allow a local authority to undertake trading activities.  

In addition, under the “general power of competence” introduced by Section 1 of 

the Localism Act 2011 local authorities now have a general power that enables 

them to do anything that a private individual is entitled to do, subject to certain 

statutory limitations.  However, it should be noted that things done for a 

commercial purpose even under the Localism Act 2011 must be done through a 

company. 

4 It is now timely for the SDC to take the necessary preparatory steps to be in a 

position to utilise its trading powers where individual business cases may be 

identified.  It is therefore proposed that a trading company structure be 

established. 

Company Structure 

5 There are a number of different types of corporate vehicle available.  These break 

down as follows: 

• Company limited by share; 

• Company limited by guarantee; 

• Industrial and provident society. 

There are some other vehicles, such as a community interest company, a limited 

liability partnership or a joint venture company.  However, for the purposes of 

general trading it is unlikely that such vehicles would be considered to be 

appropriate. 

In practice a Company Limited by Shares tends to be used for those operations 

which have a commercial character and a Company Limited by Guarantee or 

Industrial & Provident Society for those which are set up to deliver community 

purposes or are set up for charitable purposes. 

6 Given that it is essential that there is a proper examination of a business case 

before a local authority uses the power to trade in any particular circumstance this 

will align with the approach SDC is taking to explore appropriate options which 

would include the development of business cases.  Individual business cases 

relating to trading activity would then be implemented through the trading 

company structure.  However given there is the potential over a period of time for 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



 

a range of different business cases to be developed, it may prove advantageous to 

establish over time a group company structure with a number of subsidiary 

companies being undertaken to deliver the individual business cases. 

Company Requirements 

7 In setting up the trading company, the following issues need consideration and 

definition. 

Company Name 

Purpose of the Company 

Aims of the Company 

Set up Requirements and Costs 

There will be a number of other detailed matters to be resolved and it is suggested 

that an appropriate delegation be granted to enable these to be settled as set out 

in the recommendation. 

Company Name 

8  It is proposed that the Members’ Communications Working Group be tasked with 

choosing the name of the Company.  Any subsidiary companies that may be 

developed over time may have a different trading name. 

Governance Arrangements 

9. The Company must legally appoint Directors.  The Directors of the company must 

ensure that the company does everything it is obliged to do by law and that any 

decisions they make are in the best interests of the company.   

It is proposed that initially the small Board of Directors as set out below be 

appointed from the senior officers of the Council. 

Roles in Company Roles at Sevenoaks District Council 

Finance Director – Chief Finance Officer 

Commercial Director – Chief Officer Environmental & Operational Services 

Managing Director – Chief Executive 

Company Secretary – Chief Officer Legal and Governance 

It is envisaged that there will be 3 non executive Directors who will be Members of 

SDC to be nominated by the Leader of the Council. 

Chief Officers in the above roles may need to draw upon the support from an 

outside firm of accountants or lawyers if necessary. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 

Further Directors, including independent Directors who are neither members nor 

officers may be appointed in the future if it is believed they may benefit the 

business of the company. 

10. The Memorandum of Association will need to be completed.  This will set out the 

company’s objects which are proposed to be ‘to carry on business as a general 

commercial company’.  It also shows details of the company’s share capital. 

11. The Articles of Association will also need to be completed.  These set out the 

regulations governing the running of the company’s affairs. 

12. It is envisaged that an off the shelf company will be purchased which will have 

wide trading powers including property investment. 

13. A major Governance issue is the relationship with SDC (the Shareholder) and the 

Company’s internal processes.  It is important that the Company is able to act 

quickly in order to generate and sustain business but on the other hand the 

Council needs to manage risks and to be able to determine whether it is 

appropriate for the Company to enter into a particular contract(s).  Therefore, it is 

proposed that a provision be included in the Articles of Association whereby the 

Council’s consent via its Shareholders be granted before a particular property 

acquisition or business contract is entered into by the Company.  The Council 

being the Shareholders would be represented by Cabinet especially as property 

acquisition and disposal is a Cabinet function.  Cabinet will be able to approve any 

proposed acquisition or disposal by the Company up to a value of 5 million pounds 

and an emergency meeting of Cabinet may be called if there is a need for an 

urgent decision.    

14. It is likely that some of the Governance structure of the Company or group of 

Companies will evolve over a period of time.  However, it is envisaged that the 

Cabinet will be responsible for overseeing the Company’s overall trading activities.  

It is suggested that the Directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries should 

not be the members of the Cabinet.  The Executive Directors will be officers of the 

Senior Management Team (“SMT”) who will be accountable to the Cabinet, with 

Cabinet acting on behalf of Council who will be the Shareholders. 

15. It is also proposed that there is a monthly shareholder meeting at which the 

Council (the Shareholders) are represented by the Cabinet to which the Executive 

Directors of the Company i.e. the relevant Officers of the SMT would report.   

Accounting and Banking Arrangements 

16. The Company will have to comply with all the regulatory requirements of the 

Companies Acts and additionally with the regulatory regime for local authority 

companies under the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.  

17. The company may need to charge VAT and will be liable for corporation tax on its 

profits.  However, given that SDC must ensure that it fully recovers the cost of all 

staffing resources and other goods and services provided, it is anticipated that the 

company’s tax liability could be minimised. 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



 

18. It is envisaged that the Company will not have a separate bank account from the 

outset, but all transactions will be posted through the Council’s bank account.  

This model will prevent cash flow implications and avoid the requirement for a 

working capital balance when the company begins trading. 

19. The Company will use the Council’s financial facilities.  The accounting structure 

will ensure that all income, expenditure and VAT can be allocated to the Company 

by use of appropriate budget codes.  The Company will use its own stationery for 

purchase orders and invoices and will facilitate the submission of the Company’s 

VAT returns. 

20. Balances held by the Company will be calculated on an annual basis.  The 

Company will be responsible for providing its accounts and tax returns in the 

appropriate format within set deadlines. 

21. The Company will be responsible for the engagement of an external auditor. 

22. As the company will be controlled by the local authority a number of requirements 

may undoubtedly need to be met such as: 

• The company must state on company stationery that the company is 

controlled by a local authority, giving the name of the relevant authority. 

• The company must limit the remuneration and allowances paid to directors 

who are officers or members of the local authority to the amounts payable 

for comparable local authority duties, or as travelling and subsistence 

allowances. 

• The company must not publish party political material. 

• The company must provide information to the local authority’s auditors. 

• The company must provide information to members of the local authority. 

Business Case 

23 By setting up a generic trading company, the authority has the flexibility to operate 

it in a variety of ways. 

24 The potential opportunities for trading are wide ranging and it is difficult to explore 

new services and routes to market without the company set up.  Initially the main 

thrust of the generic trading company will be to invest in land and buildings that 

can increase SDC’s income as set out in the Corporate Plan.  The Corporate Plan 

sets out what the Council will do to make progress in delivering its promises over 

the next two years.  “To help us get there we want to go further, to be truly 

ambitious and seek to become financially self sufficient.  We want to break new 

ground and make the Council less reliant on Government funding”.   

25 The trading company will enable the Council to operate property investment on a 

commercial basis.  The Report of the Chief Finance Officer entitled “Investment 

Strategy – Assets For Income” sets out an Investment Strategy for acquiring 

physical Assets and Cabinet will be asked to approve the proposed Investment 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 

Strategy.  The Business Case in relation to the Investment Strategy will be 

developed for consideration at a future Cabinet meeting and will cover the 

following aspects: 

• The objectives of the property trading activities 

• The investment and other resources required to achieve those objectives 

• Any risks the business might face and how significant those risks are and 

• The expected financial results of the business, together with any relevant 

outcomes the business is expected to achieve.   

The precise funding mechanism for the property side of the Company will be 

considered as part of the development of the full business case.  However, such a 

mechanism could include a loan or series of loans by the Council to the Company 

to allow it to invest in accordance with the Strategy and Business Case. 

Under such circumstances, borrowing costs would be met by the Company.  Loans 

would be made available to the Company on a basis which is compliant with the 

terms of funding which are similar to those which would be achievable by a private 

funder given the importance of Competition law and State Aid rules.  Specialist 

advice may be sought as part of the development of the business case. 

26 Examples of other areas of potential trading activities are as follows: 

• Other local authorities and the private sector may use the expertise of 

Sevenoaks in order to improve their own services. 

• Communications could be an area for possible trading activity. 

• There may be possibilities for expanding our trade waste service.  This can 

be done under the Goods and Services Act if the work is undertaken for 

other local authorities or public bodies. 

• Events organisation is also another trading possibility leading on from the 

Council’s successful involvement in delivering the Para Olympics 

27 If the above outline company structure framework is established then this will 

expedite implementation of business cases which involve the use of trading as 

and when they may be approved in due course. 

Staffing Implications 

28 The company will initially be operated on the basis of part-time secondments from 

the Council and as a result TUPE will not apply to transfer staff on SDC’s terms and 

conditions to the company. 

29  However, if new contracts are secured, or existing contracts are novated such that 

staff are required to be whole time employed on external contracts traded through 

the company, then either 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



 

a) Staff could continue to be seconded to the company in the short term; or 

b) Staff will need to be employed directly by the company. 

Long term, or for any significant number of employees, option a) above is 

less attractive because 

c) SDC will be liable for redeployment or for bearing the cost risk of potential 

redundancy of the employees if the company loses a relevant contract; 

d) Depending on the number of staff who may need to be seconded to the 

external company this may have an effect on the capacity for our present 

HR/payroll services which could result in additional costs. 

e) The District Auditor may query the inclusion of staff on SDC’s payroll who are 

not employed at all in the provision of SDC services. 

30 If the trading company employ staff directly, and former SDC staff are transferred 

to the Company under TUPE, the company will be required to offer any new staff 

comparable terms and conditions including pension rights.  Staff who are TUPE 

transferred to an external contractor have the legal right to pension rights that are 

the same as, or broadly comparable to, or better than those s/he had as an 

employee of the authority.  

State Aid 

31 In order to ensure transparency and competitiveness with the private sector and 

not to breach the rules in relation to State Aid the company must not be 

subsidised by the authority.  This means that the authority must recover the costs 

of any accommodation, goods, services, employees or any other support it 

supplies to the company.  It will be necessary to set up suitable systems and 

financial controls to ensure this is the case and to demonstrate independence of 

the company from the authority. 

32 The Trading Company should be mindful of its trading impact on the local 

economy.  In recognition of this concern it may be decided that new lines of 

business would only be taken on after a Market Impact Assessment had been 

carried out. 

33 However, the trading company could fill gaps in the local market and could benefit 

local businesses by procuring goods and services to support the trading activity. 

Key Implications 

Financial  

34 The set up costs will come from existing approved budgets. 

35 There may be a need to set up separate financial systems and accounting 

arrangements (including VAT).  Future running costs may be offset to a degree 

against future income streams. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



 

36 It is anticipated that the trading company will use part time seconded staff, use 

council accommodation, equipment and services on the basis of recovering the 

full cost, and as a result start up costs should be minimised but would include 

matters such as insurance and auditors fees. 

37 Financial advice will be required in relation to Prudential borrowing requirements 

especially in relation to the ability to borrow to invest in property. 

38 It is envisaged that some legal advice will also be required in relation to the 

package put together by the Council’s in house legal department prior to the 

Company launch taking place. 

39 There are financial risks arising from the use of the Councils’ trading powers.  

These would need to be analysed in detail as part of any individual business case 

put forward for the use of the trading powers.  Although a trading company would 

be a separate legal entity with the benefit of limited liability it would be of doubtful 

propriety for the local authority as a public body and the single shareholder in the 

company not to honour any liabilities of the company to creditors in the event of 

significant trading losses occurring. 

40 However as the Council will have effective control of the company, oversight of its 

on going operations would allow for early detection of any developing financial 

problems and the opportunity to take preventative action.    

Legal Implications and Risk Assessment Statement. 

41 A local authority is able to establish a Local Authority Trading Company (“LATC”) 

through powers in section 95 of the Local Government Act 2003.  A local authority 

is permitted to trade in anything that it is authorised to do under its ordinary 

functions.  The company can with good business planning generate a surplus 

which can be re-invested into services, or the council, being the single 

shareholder. 

42 The Local Authorities (Goods and Services) Act 1970 (the 1970 Act) continues in 

force and it enables councils to provide services to other councils and to other 

public bodies but not to the private sector or the public in general.  Successful 

trading has been undertaken by this authority under this legislation since 1970 

enabling the saving of money and the achievement of efficiencies through 

economies of scale.  The trading company will enable the authority to take 

advantage of trading opportunities that cannot be undertaken using the powers 

within the 1970 Act.  However, it is anticipated that existing trading will continue 

to happen as it currently does under the 1970 Act as this is the most cost effective 

way to trade with other local authorities and public bodies.  

43 Under section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 Local Authorities now have a general 

power that enables them to do anything that a private individual is entitled to do, 

as long as it is not expressly prohibited by other legislation.  

44 The key strategic risks are as follows: 

L = Low  M = Medium  H = High  

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



 

Risk Likelihood/Impact Risk Management 

Failure to set up trading 

arrangement in strict 

compliance with 

legislation  

L M Extensive consultation with 

other authorities and, 

appropriate, external legal 

advice on governance 

arrangements 

Using trading powers 

where there is a statutory 

obligation to provide them  

L M Every new service to trade via 

the company to list services in 

their Business Case and to 

consider statutory obligations. 

Possibility of trading ultra 

vires  

L L Every new service to trade via 

the company to consider 

statutory obligations 

Possibility of challenge to 

state aid 

L L Obtain full cost recovery 

Possibility of conflicts of 

interest arising for 

members or officers as 

Directors 

L M Abide by Codes of Conduct 

Failure to arrange 

adequate insurance cover 

for the Company’s 

liabilities/assets 

L H Ensure Insurer for the 

company is kept up to date 

with any new areas of trading 

activity. 

Failure to comply with 

taxation laws – 

corporation tax & vat 

L M Advice to be sought on 

taxation planning 

Consideration of potential 

TUPE implications 

L L Review regularly 

Trading Company failure L M Benchmark fees and costs. 

Employ tight budgetary 

controls 

Conflict of interest over 

workload priorities of 

Council projects and 

Company projects 

L L Effective resource planning 

and compliance with Corporate 

Plan 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



 

Company credit rating L L Council could act as guarantor 

and insurance to mitigate 

Challenge from Council’s 

Auditors 

L L Follow CIPFA Code of Practice 

on LA Accounting. All 

transactions applicable to the 

company can be identified 

using unique transaction 

records and coding structures 

Lack of capacity to 

manage additional work 

 

L  L Careful programming of staff 

resources and review of 

balance of staffing needs. 

Contractual disputes  L M SDC’s in house legal section to 

be employed to check all 

contracts before they are 

entered into 

Poor investment 

acquisitions 

L L Each investment acquisition 

will be of good quality with the 

potential of high income return 

set out in a business case 

Poor rate of return on 

investment property 

L L Annual valuation which sets a 

target rate of return and allows 

for financing costs and the 

generation of an annual 

surplus 

Equality Impacts 

 

Consideration of impacts under the Public Sector Equality Duty: 

Question Answer Explanation / Evidence 

a. Does the decision being made 

or recommended through this 

paper have potential to 

disadvantage or discriminate 

against different groups in the 

community? 

 No There are no Equalities implications 

arising from this report. 

b. Does the decision being made 

or recommended through this 

paper have the potential to 

promote equality of 

opportunity? 

No 

Page 18

Agenda Item 6



 

Consideration of impacts under the Public Sector Equality Duty: 

Question Answer Explanation / Evidence 

c. What steps can be taken to 

mitigate, reduce, avoid or 

minimise the impacts 

identified above? 

 N/A 

Conclusions 

It is considered appropriate to make use of the increased power given by the 
Localism Act 2011 to enable trading to take place for profit through a limited liability 
company wholly owned by the Council in order for this authority to be less dependent 
upon Government funding.  

Background Papers: Templates for Business Plans: 

Template developed by Mutual Ventures 

Barclays – Your Business Plan 

Grant Thornton – Responding to the Challenge 

Unison – Branch guide to local authority trading 

companies 

General Power for Local Authorities to Trade 

Information received from Surrey County Council 

PropertyWeek.Com “Surrey council pioneers prop-co” 

Sevenoaks District Council Corporate Plan 

Christine Nuttall – Chief Officer Legal and Governance 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

RURAL BROADBAND  

Finance & Resources Advisory Committee – 26 March 2014 

 

Report of: Chief Officer, Communities & Business  

Status: For Decision 

Also considered by: Rural Broadband Working Group- 5 February 

Economic & Community Development Advisory Committee – 26 

February 2014 

Cabinet – 10 April 2014 

Key Decision: Yes 

Executive Summary: 

This report summarises the work that has taken place to improve broadband within the 

District. It also explores 5 options that Members may want to consider in order to improve 

services in the future. 

This report supports the Key Aim of the Community Plan (Dynamic and Sustainable 

Economy) 

Portfolio Holder Cllr. Roddy Hogarth 

Contact Officer(s) Lesley Bowles - Chief Officer, Communities & Business x7335 

Joe Middleton- Economic Development Officer x7128 

Recommendation to Economic & Community Advisory Committee/Finance & 

Resources Advisory Committee:  That Members views are sought on the options for 

future broadband provision in the District  and to make any recommendations to Cabinet. 

Recommendation to Cabinet:   

Subject to any views of the Advisory Committees and Members views are sought on the 

options for future broadband provision in the District. 

Reason for recommendation:  

To determine how the District Council should respond to the need for better broadband in 

the District. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



 

Introduction and Background 

1 In 2010 the government announced that it would be investing £530 million to 

stimulate commercial investment in superfast broadband infrastructure in rural 

areas. 

2 Kent County Council were successful in bidding for £10 million from the BDUK 

funding; this has been combined with an additional £10 million from the KCC 

Regeneration Fund.  Any private provider would be expected to match this.  KCC 

entered a competitive procurement process and signed a contract with BT.  The 

agreed targets with BT are as follows: 

• At least 95% of all properties in Kent will have access to higher speed fibre based 

broadband. 

• Every property in the County will be able to access a minimum of 2 mbps 

• A minimum of 91% of premises will get superfast broadband of at least 24 mbps 

3 We have also been actively engaging with local communities to apply for funds 

from the DEFRA Rural Community Broadband Fund (RCBF).  We have submitted a 

joint application with Tunbridge Wells Borough Council for funds to upgrade some 

of our ‘hard to reach’ rural areas with superfast broadband. This will benefit parts 

of Leigh, Chiddingstone, Penshurst, Cowden and Hever. Further information is 

given in the appendix to this report. This project will be delivered by BT as part of 

the BDUK rollout using the change control mechanism, thus avoiding a lengthy 

procurement process or difficult state aid sign off.  A further pot of government 

funding will be released on the 17th March 2014. (See Appendix A and B for 

further details)  

4 Members have expressed concerns that the BDUK and RCBF process will not 

provide adequately fast broadband services to our primarily rural District.  Officers 

were tasked with looking at a number of options which the Council could 

undertake to improve broadband in the District, including those which may provide 

an income to the Council. 

5 OPTION 1 - Assist local communities in taking advantage of the BDUK and 

RCBF rollout .  We would continue to develop our relationship with BT and assist 

in delivery of the BDUK and RCBF projects. 

6 OPTION 2 - Work with small network providers to encourage them to invest in 

the District.   Develop of our relationship with small private sector providers. Give 

them information about specific areas of the District that have subpar speeds. Put 

them in contact with local communities, parish councils and broadband working 

groups so that the companies can present to local communities. 

7 OPTION 3a -  Invest with smaller companies to provide broadband services in 

the District.  Develop our relationship with small private sector providers, identify 

those areas with poor broadband connectivity and invest with these companies 

using Council funds.  Those communities with continued poor speeds would get a 

significant upgrade.  Like many investors, the Council is currently getting a poor 

return on its cash reserves. Investing in small broadband companies for the 

Page 22

Agenda Item 7



 

remaining poor areas of coverage in the District could be a ‘win-win’ situation. The 

Council would receive a more beneficial return on its financial investment and 

rural communities would receive improved broadband speeds.   

The Crockham Hill Community Interest Company (CHCIC) was started with a 

combination of KCC seed funding and considerable private investment.  It delivers 

a wireless broadband solution with fibre backbone, which will eventually enable 

residents and businesses to gain speeds of over 100mb/s. So far, they have 

connected approximately 170 properties (both business and residential).  They are 

currently seeking a further £100,000 funding to expand their network and reach 

further rural communities.  The attractiveness of this model for many residents 

and businesses is that any profit is then redistributed in the local community. 

8 OPTION 3b- Invest in a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV), which would then 

allocate funding to smaller companies to provide broadband services in the 

District. Develop our relationship with small private sector providers, identify 

those areas with poor broadband connectivity and invest with these companies 

through the SPV. Those communities with continued poor speeds would get a 

significant upgrade. Like many investors, the Council is currently getting a poor 

return on its cash reserves. Investing in small broadband companies for the 

remaining poor areas of coverage in the District could be a ‘win-win’ situation. The 

Council would receive a more beneficial return on its financial investment and 

rural communities would receive improved broadband speeds. The fundamental 

difference between this and Option 3a is that this would bypass burdensome state 

aid regulations. 

9 OPTION 4 - Consider setting up a Community Interest Company to deliver 

broadband services. It has been suggested by members that the District Council 

consider starting its own telecoms company. 

10 OPTION 5- Commission technical and demand surveys. We already have 

information on which cabinets will be updated in the BDUK programme (Appendix 

A).  However information on coverage and speeds has not been released. To better 

understand the future provision in the District we could get a technical broadband 

consultant to provide us with a study. In addition to this, it would be useful to have 

an in-depth needs survey for the whole District. This could then be used to attract 

investment and, in the future, purchased by those looking to invest so they know 

which areas are keen on what service. 

11 Analysis of each of these options is given in this report and in the appendix. 

Key Implications 

Financial 

OPTION 1 - There would be no financial implications associated with this option. 

OPTION 2 - There would be no financial implications associated with this option. 

OPTION 3a - In order to take account of State Aid rules we would only be able to invest in 

areas which were in ‘market failure’.  There is a precedent for this.  Northamptonshire are 

currently out at procurement for the most rural areas which are not covered under the 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



 

BDUK contract.  A number of areas of the District are already going to be covered by the 

following programmes/private companies: 

• BDUK or RCBF 

• Gigaclear (Underriver project) 

• Crockham Hill CIC 

• Callflow Solutions 

• V Fast 

 

None of the areas covered by these programmes or private providers will be in ‘market 

failure’. This is likely to leave a small proportion of the District which would be eligible for 

an upgrade from public funds, making this investment less attractive for the Council. 

A business case would need to be procured to assess demand and the financial 

implications for the Council.  Privately provided rural broadband is extremely expensive. 

As an example, the Underriver project, being delivered by Gigaclear is costing 

approximately £1.1 million for 1,200 rural households.  

The financial return from investing in either a private company or CIC is unknown and the 

payback period will be over the next 10-15 years.  In the case of the Crockham Hill CIC, 

investment by the Council in the Crockham Hill company, whilst it would enable wider 

reach of the project, would not produce a financial return.  However, the Council may be 

able to help steer how the profits, which are ploughed back into the community, could be 

spent. We may have to commission an independent review. 

OPTION 3b- Investing in an SPV would bypass many of the state aid problems mentioned 

in Option 3a.  However, there would still be a considerable financial outlay for the Council. 

The SPV would still be investing considerable amounts of public money. A business case 

would need to be procured to assess demand and the financial implications for the 

Council.  Privately provided rural broadband is extremely expensive. As an example, the 

Underriver project, being delivered by Gigaclear is costing approximately £1.1 million for 

1,200 rural households.  

The financial return from investing in a private company is unknown and the payback 

period will be over the next 10-15 years. 

OPTION 4 - The Council would need to apply for an Electronic Communications Code 

licence which would cost the Council £10,000 for a successful application and then an 

annual fee, payable at the beginning of each financial year of £1000. There is no 

guarantee that this would be granted.  Commercial providers are able to comment on the 

application and are known to oppose applications, particularly where they feel that State 

Aid regulations may apply. 

As an estimate we would need four additional members of staff (a network administrator, 

two technical operators and a consultant to oversee and map the process). Investing in 

rural broadband is expensive. The approximate cost for the Underriver project (which 

covers approximately 1,200 households in West Kent) is £1.1 million. 

Page 24

Agenda Item 7



 

Two very high profile DIY projects have failed, one of them in Kent. The financial 

consequences have been significant. 

Digital Region was established in South Yorkshire in 2012 to deliver superfast broadband 

to over 526,000 homes in Sheffield, Barnsley, Doncaster and Rotherham. It was started 

with considerable European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) and local authority 

funding. The total funding was £95 million. With such funding the network expanded 

quickly. Unfortunately the project was plagued by low subscription rates and undercutting 

from competing private sector providers. The project closed earlier this year at a 

considerable loss to the taxpayer. It is still required to pay back the ERDF loan funding it 

received. 

In another instance, Selling Parish Council received a £50,000 grant from Kent County 

Council to upgrade broadband services. They decided to embark upon a Fibre to the 

Premise (FTTP) solution. Three years later over £500,000 has been spent and only 36 

properties have been connected to the service.  Much like the Digital Region project, 

demand for the project was low, a number of communities were unconvinced and there 

was competition from larger private sector providers. 

OPTION 5 - We would need to go out to tender in order to commission the technical and 

demand study. The financial outlay is uncertain at this time. 

Legal Implications and Risk Assessment Statement. 

OPTION 2- There are no legal implications or risk associated with this option. 

OPTION 5- There are no legal implications or risk associated with this option. 

 Risk Effect Mitigation 

Option 1 Risk to SDC reputation if the 

rollout is slow or misses out 

difficult to reach properties 

Residents are 

unhappy that we 

have not been 

more proactive in 

getting better 

broadband to rural 

areas 

Work with residents to 

understand other 

broadband solutions. 

Option 

3a and 

3b 

We would be investing into a 

very competitive, saturated 

market.  

 

 

 

 

The company we 

invest in could 

become bankrupt 

or insolvent. 

 

 

 

 

A large amount of due 

diligence would have to 

done on any company in 

which we chose to invest. 

Agreements would have 

to be in place with any 

company we invested 

with so that in the event 

of their insolvency the 

infrastructure (and 

subsequent service) 

would transfer to another 

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



 

 

 

 

Rural broadband is extremely 

expensive. It remains to be 

seen if the public would be 

sympathetic to the Council 

investing such large sums of 

money in relatively rural, 

small areas of the District. 

For 3a we may contravene 

State Aid regulations 

 

 

The public may be 

critical of the 

Council spending 

large sums of 

money during a 

time of fiscal 

austerity. 

 

provider.   

Public opinion would 

have to be monitored. 

 

 

 

 

 

    

Option 4 We would be entering an 

extremely competitive, 

saturated market. There is a 

precedent for the public 

sector entering the telecoms 

market; the Digital Region 

project has proven a 

disastrous use of public 

money. 

The company could become 

under-cut by private sector 

providers 

Public sector models of this 

type face a competitive 

disadvantage compared with 

their private sector 

counterparts. Small providers 

are able to respond much 

faster to the market as they 

have a smaller regulatory 

burden. 

There is no guarantee we 

would be granted the 

Electronic Communications 

Code. The application process 

is lengthy, expensive and all 

private providers who 

currently have the code are 

asked to respond to the 

-The company we 

set up loses 

customers and 

wastes taxpayer 

money. 

 

 

 

People would 

leave our service. 

 

The company 

becomes 

inefficient and 

unable to respond 

to market changes 

or innovation. 

 

 

 

The likely negative 

and severe 

response from 

Meet with Digital Region 

and understand the 

pitfalls and risks of 

setting up a company to 

deliver broadband 

services. 

 

 

 

Prices would have to be 

monitored and kept 

competitive. 

 

A corporate working 

group would need to be 

created to encourage 

innovation and ‘fast 

track’ ideas. 

 

 

 

Communications would 

have to monitor the 

Page 26

Agenda Item 7



 

application in a 10 week 

consultation. We should 

expect the response to our 

application to be vigorous 

and negative. 

For this model to work we 

would have to take on 4-5 

permanent new members of 

staff 

 

 

Large financial outlay. Rural 

broadband provision is 

expensive 

both the public 

(cost) and the 

private sector will 

have a negative 

impact upon the 

Council’s 

reputation. 

 

 

 

The trading 

company may not 

be able to afford 

to pay them. 

 

The company may 

become insolvent 

and the Council 

may lose the 

taxpayer’s 

investment.  

public response. We 

would have to meet with 

private providers. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ensure that proper risks 

are accounted for and 

understood before 

embarking on this type of 

project. 

Option 5 It may be that, having 

commissioned technical and 

demand surveys, they show 

that there is no demand for 

broadband in addition to that 

being rolled out under the 

BDUK programme. 

It may be that companies 

would prefer to conduct their 

own technical and demand 

studies rather than purchase 

those undertaken by the 

Council 

The data collected 

would not be 

valuable 

 

 

Option 3a would both require some form of legal advice in relation to State Aid. Any 

investment in broadband over £200,000 over a two year period requires State Aid sign 

off. Any upgrade we would want to make would require us to contact BT in order to 

understand which areas are in ‘market failure’ to ensure that we can get State Aid sign 

off for any investment. The reason for this is that they are the only ones who currently 

hold the detailed information on which areas of the District will be upgraded using public 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



 

money. We would need this information in order to prove that the areas we wanted to 

invest in fell within ‘market failure’. 

Option 3b would require some advice from legal and finance on the operation of an SPV. 

Option 4 will be technically exempt from State Aid regulations. The reason is that the 

Council would set up a private company which would then borrow money from the Council 

to deliver the service. It remains to be seen whether a private provider would put forward 

a legal challenge on this model. 

Equality Impacts 
 

Consideration of impacts under the Public Sector Equality Duty: 

Question Answer Explanation / Evidence 

a. Does the decision being made 

or recommended through this 

paper have potential to 

disadvantage or discriminate 

against different groups in the 

community? 

No The paper sets out options for future 

broadband provision. 

 

 

 

 

Improved broadband services have the 

ability to be able to significant improve 

well-being and access to services in rural 

areas of the District. 

b. Does the decision being made 

or recommended through this 

paper have the potential to 

promote equality of 

opportunity? 

Yes 

c. What steps can be taken to 

mitigate, reduce, avoid or 

minimise the impacts 

identified above? 

 The paper sets out options for future 

broadband provision. 

 

Community Impact and Outcomes 

Increased broadband provision throughout the District would have a beneficial impact on 

rural communities. 

Resource (non financial) 

Option 1 -  No additional resource would be needed. 

Option 2 - No additional resource would be needed. 

Option 3a - Considerable officer time would be spent designing a procurement process, 

going the Open Market Review (OMR) process and getting sign off for State Aid. 

Option 3b - Considerable officer time would be spent designing a procurement process 

and working with the companies on delivery. 

Option 4 - Considerable officer time would be spent creating a business case, which 

would heavily involve the finance team. We would also have to spend time interviewing 

for new staff, procuring equipment, mapping the network and marketing.  

Option 5 - Some officer time will have to be spent tendering for the work. Officers will also 

have to spend time working with consultants. This should not be onerous. 

 

Page 28

Agenda Item 7



 

 

 

Conclusions 

Members views are sought on which options should be taken forward. 

Appendices 

Appendix A- BDUK Cabinets to be upgraded in Q1 

Appendix B- Superfast Broadband Availability after BDUK and RCBF Projects  

Background Documents None  

 .  

Lesley Bowles 

Chief Officer Communities and Business 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A- BDUK Cabinets to be upgraded in Quarter 1 – document available on request  

 

  

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 7



Appendix A- BDUK Cabinets to be upgraded in Quarter 1 – document available on request  

 

  

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 7



Appendix A- BDUK Cabinets to be upgraded in Quarter 1 – document available on request  

 

 

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 7



Appendix B– document available on request  

 

 

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 7



 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 2013/14 – TO THE END OF JANUARY 2014 

Finance and Resources Advisory Committee – 26 March 2014 

 

Report of  Chief Finance Officer 

Status: For consideration 

Key Decision: No  

This report supports the Key Aim of  Effective Management of Council Resources 

Portfolio Holder Cllr. Ramsey 

Contact Officer(s) Helen Martin Ext. 7483 

Recommendation to Finance and Resources Advisory Committee:  That the report be 

noted. 

Introduction and Background 

Overall Financial Position 

1. Ten months into the year the results to date showed an overall favourable variance of 

£477,000.  Reasons for this current favourable variance are explained in the 

individual commentaries from Chief Officers. 

 

2. The year-end position is forecast to be £271,000 better than budget.  

 

Key Issues for the year to date 

3. Income – investment income is performing above target and is forecast to be better 

than budgeted at the year-end. This is due to higher than estimated balances and 

slightly higher rates being achieved during the first half of the year. 

 

4. Income from On-street parking, Land Charges and Development Management has 

achieved or exceeded budget targets at the end of January. 

 

5. Pay costs – the actual expenditure to date on SDC funded salaried staff is £202,000 

below budget.   An underspending of £258,000 relates to Direct Services and will be 

offset by agency staff costs held within the trading account.   Additional resources are 

being used to address the Benefits workload and costs will be met by additional 

funding from both partners.   

 

6. Other – Direct Services’ results show a positive variance of £186,000 compared to 

budget. 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



 

7. Costs amounting to £30,000 were incurred in facilitating the sale of 66 London Road. 

 

8. Revised Members expenses were agreed on 1 October and adjustments were paid in 

November. 

 

Year End Forecast  

9. The year-end position is forecast to be £271,000 better than budget.  

 

10. Investment income is still a small favourable variance, however interest rates are 

expected to remain low into the future.  

 

11.  Income from council tax court costs is expected to be above budget for the year.  

 

12. Following the sale of 66 London Road, there will be a saving on rent and rates at that 

site.  Expenditure is forecast to be £76,000 below budget, however,  £50,000 of this 

saving will be used to fund initial investigations into potential property 

developments...  

 

13. A saving of £30,000 is expected against the annual budget for audit fees.  

 

14. The contracts for markets at Sevenoaks and Swanley were re-tendered in 12/13 

following the voluntary liquidation of the previous operators.  Income from these new 

contracts is forecast to be £62,000 worse than budget. 

 

15. Car Parking income, mainly pay and display, is now expected to be £70,000 worse 

than budget. 

 

16. Direct Services are forecasting a favourable variance of £119,000 for the year.  A 

favourable variance of £69,000 is forecast on income, particularly from the vehicle 

workshop. 

 

17. Planning Services are now predicting that Planning fee income will be £115,000 

better than budget. 

 

18. Additional income from legal work on s106 agreements is giving rise to a £21,000 

favourable variance. 

 

19. The review of the senior management structure did not take effect until 1 September 

and as a result the full salary saving will not be met in 2013/14 although this shortfall 

of £48,000 will be met from other Corporate savings. The full saving will be delivered 

in future years.  Following the restructure, there is a favourable variance of £12k on 

the budget for administrative expenses. 

Risk areas 

20. The current economic situation continues to have a real and potential impact on the 

Council’s finances: 

 

Page 36

Agenda Item 8



 

• the investment strategy is constantly under review in light of the changing long 

term credit ratings which affects the number of organisations the Council can 

invest in  

• property related income such as Development Control (particularly pre-application 

fees and S106 monitoring), Building Control, Land Charges remain vulnerable.   

• the Benefits workload is at a higher level than before the recession.  Agency staff 

are being used to address the workload and to fill any vacancies due to continuing 

uncertainties relating to Universal Credit;   

• Council Tax collection rates, though currently in line with 2012/13, could be 

affected by increased unemployment and squeezed household incomes;  

 

21. Planned savings through the generation of income, particularly from new partnership 

working, remain risk areas for the current and for future years.   

 

Key Implications 

Financial 

The financial implications are set out elsewhere in this report. 

Legal Implications and Risk Assessment Statement.  

Under section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Section 151 officer has 

statutory duties in relation to the financial administration and stewardship of the 

authority. 

Detailed budget monitoring is completed on a monthly basis where all variances are 

explained.  Future risk items are also identified. 

Equality Impacts  

Consideration of impacts under the Public Sector Equality Duty: 

Question Answer Explanation / Evidence 

a. Does the decision being made 

or recommended through this 

paper have potential to 

disadvantage or discriminate 

against different groups in the 

community? 

No The recommendation is concerned with 

sound control of the Councils finances and 

does not directly impact on services 

provided to the community  

b. Does the decision being made 

or recommended through this 

paper have the potential to 

promote equality of 

opportunity? 

No 

c. What steps can be taken to 

mitigate, reduce, avoid or 

minimise the impacts 

identified above? 

 No mitigating steps are required  

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



 

Appendices Appendix – January Budget Monitoring Reports 

Adrian Rowbotham 

Chief Finance Officer   

 

Page 38

Agenda Item 8



BUDGET MONITORING - Strategic Commentary - As at 31st January 2014 

  

Overall Financial Position 

 

1. Ten months into the year the results to date show an overall favourable variance of £477,000. Reasons for this current favourable variance 
are explained in the individual commentaries from Chief Officers. 

 

2. The year-end position is now forecast to be £271,000 better than budget.  
 

   

Key Issues for the year to date 

 

3. Investment income is performing above target and is forecast to be marginally better than budgeted at the year-end. This is due to higher 
than estimated balances and slightly higher rates being achieved during the first half of the year.  

  

4. Income from On Street Parking, Land Charges and Development Management has achieved or exceeded budget targets at the end of 
January.   

 

5. Pay costs – the actual expenditure to date on SDC funded salaried staff is £202000 below budget. An underspending of £258,000 relates 
to Direct Services and will be offset by agency staff costs held within the trading account. Additional resources are being used to address the 

Benefits workload and costs will be met by additional funding from both partners.   

 

6. Other  
 

5 Direct Services’ results show a positive variance of £186,000 compared to budget. 

6 Costs amounting to £30,000 were incurred in facilitating the sale of 66 London Road. 

7 Revised Members expenses were agreed on 1 October and adjustments were paid in November. 

 

 

Year End Forecast  
 

7. The year-end position is forecast to be £271,000 better than budget.  
 

8. Investment income is still a small favourable variance, however interest rates are expected to remain low into the future.  
 

9. Income from council tax court costs is expected to be above budget for the year.  
 

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 8



10. Following the sale of 66 London Road, there will be a saving on rent and rates at that site. Expenditure is forecast to be £76,000 below 
budget, however £50,000 of this saving will be used to fund initial investigations into potential property development. 

 

11. An unfavourable variance of £59,000 is expected on the budget for management of properties where the Council has to meet the business 
rates of properties now vacant pending disposal, and the associated reduced rental income. 

 

12. A saving of £30,000 is expected against the annual budget for audit fees.  
 

13. The contracts for markets at Sevenoaks and Swanley were re-tendered in 12/13 following the voluntary liquidation of the previous 
operators. Income from these new contracts is forecast to be £62,000 worse than budget. 

 

14. Car Parking income, mainly pay and display, is still expected to be £70,000 worse than budget. 
 

15. Direct Services are forecasting a favourable variance of £119,000 for the year. A favourable forecast of £69,000 is forecast on income, 
particularly from the vehicle workshop. 

 

16. Planning Services are now predicting that Planning fee income will be £115,000 better than budget. 
 

17. Additional income from legal work on S106 agreements is giving rise to a £21k favourable variance. 
 

18. The review of the senior management structure did not take effect until 1st September and as a result the full salary saving will not be met 
in 2013/14 although this shortfall of £48k will be met from other Corporate savings. The full saving will be delivered in future years.  

Following the restructure, there is favourable variance of £12k on the budget for administrative expenses.  

 

 
Risk areas 

 

19. The current economic situation continues to have a real and potential impact on the Council’s finances: 
 

• the investment strategy is constantly under review in light of the changing long term credit ratings which affects the number of 

organisations the Council can invest in;  

• property related income such as Development Control (particularly pre-application fees and S106 monitoring), Building Control, Land 

Charges remain vulnerable;  

• the Benefits workload is at a higher level than before the recession. Agency staff are being used to address the workload and to fill any 

vacancies due to uncertainties relating to Universal Credit; 

• Council Tax collection rates, though currently in line with the previous year, could be affected by increased unemployment and squeezed 

household incomes; and 

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 8



 

20. Planned savings through the generation of income, particularly from new partnership working, remain risk areas for the current and for 
future years.   

 

 

Contacts: 

 

Pav Ramewal   Chief Executive    ext 7298 

Adrian Rowbotham  Chief Finance Officer    ext 7153 

Helen Martin   Head of Finance    ext 7483 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Communities and Business – January 2014 Commentary 
 

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 8



Service Variance to 
date 
£’000 

 (Minus is bad 
news) 

Forecast 
Annual 

Variance 
£000 

Explanation of variance and action planned (including changes from previous month) 

Leisure Contract 22  Late invoicing by Sencio. 

West Kent 
Partnership 
Business Support 

12  External funding received in advance. 

Salaries – Ext 
Funded 

-24 -25 This is offset by additional external income to cover externally funded staff. 

Capital – Big 
Community Fund 

-35  This is fully funded from the earmarked reserve at the year end. 

 

Capital – Parish 
Projects 

46 61 There are no current capital schemes in Parish projects, balance to be carried forward. 

 

Future Issues/Risk Areas 
 
 

 

Chief Officer Communities and Business    
February 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 8



Corporate Support – January 2014 Commentary 
 

Service Variance to 
date 
£’000 

 (Minus is bad 
news) 

Forecast 
Annual 

Variance 
£000 

Explanation of variance and action planned (including changes from previous month) 

Estates 
Management – 
Buildings 

-53 -59 £30k costs associated with facilitating the sale of 66 London Road. Remaining variance due to the Council 
having to meet the business rates of properties now vacant pending disposal and the associated reduced 
rental income. 

Support – Central 
Offices 

26  Fire alarm system works not included in these figures yet, originally profiled for earlier in the year. 

Support – 
Contact Centre 

28  Awaiting costs for new kiosk and other self-service projects. 

Support – 
General Admin 

18  Additional work to support corporate projects not yet invoiced. 

Support – Human 
Resources 

-12 -1 SMT will be reviewing the training budgets with a view to adjusting them. 

Salaries 40 4 £4k - HR salaries underspend due to vacant post. Awaiting costs for new kiosk and other self-service 
projects. 

 

Future Issues/Risk Areas 
 
 

 
Chief Officer Corporate Support    
February 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 8



Environmental & Operational Services – January 2014 Commentary 
 
Service Variance to 

date 
£’000 

 (Minus is bad 
news) 

Forecast 
Annual 

Variance 
£000 

Explanation of variance and action planned (including changes from previous month) 

Admin Expenses 
– Health 

11 6 Forecast savings on furniture and training expenses. 

Asset 
Maintenance Car 
Parks 

-21 -25 Essential car park maintenance undertaken in October to be offset, partly, by £17,500 underspend on 
other asset maintenance budgets. 

Building Control -9  Income £24,000 below profile. Savings on structural checking fees. Shared management arrangement 
with T&MBC ended end of September 2013 (£23,000 shortfall in income). Savings made on salary costs 
by not yet filling one Surveyor post. Fee income low December – February. 

Car Parks -54 -70 Income £49,000 below profile, due to actual shortfall in income from 2012/13 budget. Income mainly down 
on pay and display. 

CCTV -12 -15 The challenging income budget is currently underachieving and has been partially offset by the savings on 
salaries and transmission costs. 

EH Animal 
Control 

-20 -20 Over-expenditure on kennel fees and vet treatments for unclaimed stray dogs. 

EH 
Environmental 
Protection 

31 25 Savings on air quality monitoring costs. 

Estates 
Management – 
Grounds 

10  Refer to commentary on Parks and Recreation Grounds. 

Land Charges 17 18 Income £20,000 above profile. 

Licensing 
Partnership Hub 
(Trading) 

27  Licensing trading ‘hub’ currently £26,800 in ‘surplus’. If not spent on initiatives such as on-line forms, end 
of year ‘surplus’ is shared between the three Licensing partners. 

Licensing Regime -13 -19 General licensing fees are £19k above profile which has helped to offset the other income lines which are 
currently underachieving. 

Markets -57 -68 Income budget for Swanley market is £62,000 greater than tender price accepted. Some over-expenditure 
on cleaning and monitoring costs. Savings on salaries. 

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 8



Service Variance to 
date 
£’000 

 (Minus is bad 
news) 

Forecast 
Annual 

Variance 
£000 

Explanation of variance and action planned (including changes from previous month) 

Parks & 
Recreation 
Grounds 

-33  Overspend on Parks and Recreation areas offset by underspends on Estate Management Grounds and 
Parks Rural. 

Parks – Rural 24  Refer to commentary on Parks and Recreation areas. 

Public 
Conveniences 

-10 -12 As a result of the closure & transfer of public conveniences there is a gap in the income budget. 

Support – Direct 
Services 

14 6 Savings on printing and mobile phone costs. Further expenditure required on training. 

Salaries – 
Building Control 

11  Two Surveyor posts vacant in Building Control, partly offset by one agency Surveyor cover. 

Salaries – 
Licensing 

22  Savings on salaries in the Licensing admin ‘hub’ reflected in the Licensing ‘hub’ account. 

Salaries – 
Operational 
Services 

258 258 Savings on Direct Services salaries due to vacancies partly offset by use of agency staff to maintain 
services. Reflected in Direct Services trading accounts. 

Capital – Vehicle 
Purchases 

366  Vehicle replacement programme will be delivered within approved budget. Any slippage is carried forward 
into the vehicle replacement fund. All vehicles now ordered. 

Direct Services – 
Refuse 

79 53 Underspend on salaries partly offset by additional costs of agency staff, fuel and vehicle repairs. 

Direct Services – 
Trade 

15 9 Income £5,000 above profile. Expenditure £9,000 below profile. 

Direct Services – 
Workshop 

46 44 Income £55,000 above profile, mainly on vehicle repairs. Expenditure £10,000 above profile on vehicle 
parts. 

Direct Services – 
Green Waste 

36 27 Income £34,000 above profile mainly due to annual bin permits. 

Direct Services – 
Cesspools 

-11 -16 Income slightly over profile, but expenditure £13,000 over profile mainly on salaries and transport repairs. 

Direct Services – 
Pest Control 

-17 -15 Income £20,000 below profile, mainly on wasp nest treatments, however, £31,000 income generated on 
wasp nest treatments this year. 

Direct Services – 
Grounds 

-7 -15 Income fixed. Over-expenditure on salaries and fixed transport. 

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 8



Service Variance to 
date 
£’000 

 (Minus is bad 
news) 

Forecast 
Annual 

Variance 
£000 

Explanation of variance and action planned (including changes from previous month) 

Direct Services – 
Depot 

21 19 Income from small construction team slightly above profile. Over-expenditure on utility charges.  
Underspend on support and services. 

Direct Services - 

Trading Accounts 
Overall 

186 119 Income £93,000 above profile. Expenditure £92,000 below profile. 

 

Future Issues/Risk Areas 
 
 

 
Chief Officer Environmental & Operational Services    
February 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 8



Financial Services – January 2014 Commentary 
 

Service Variance to 
date 
£’000 

 (Minus is bad 
news) 

Forecast 
Annual 

Variance 
£000 

Explanation of variance and action planned (including changes from previous month) 

Admin Expenses 
– Community 
Director 

9 11 Forecast amended to reflect year end position on accounts no longer in use. 

Admin Expenses 
– Financial 
Services 

18 10 Printing and staff training budgets are currently underspent. 

Benefits Admin 20  £16,000 New Burdens Grant received from Government for Welfare Reform. 

Corporate 
Management 

6 66 Savings of £48k will off-set the shortfall in meeting the savings target for the senior management 
restructure which is explained further below.   

Corporate 
Savings 

-6 -38 The new senior management structure took effect in September. As a result the full year saving will not be 
met this year, giving a forecast annual variance of -£48k. Savings in the corporate management budget 
will off-set the shortfall this year. Additional savings of £10k have been achieved elsewhere in the 
Corporate Savings budget to reduce the overall variance to -£38k. 

Dartford 
Partnership Hub 
(SDC Costs) 

-231 -145 Additional resources to help address the Benefits increased workload. Both partners have agreed to 
provide additional funding. Total forecast is £290,000 of which half will be funded by Dartford BC. 

Dartford 
Partnership 
Implementation & 
Project Costs 

99 145 External funding received that will fund SDC’s share of the Benefits increased workload above. 

Local Tax -30 2 Income behind profile but year end forecasting extra Council Tax court costs. 

Members 21 20 This is underspent because some Councillors do not claim basic allowance and others do not claim the 
increases. 

Misc. Finance -17 58 Savings on rent and rates for 66 London Road following sale of the site. £50,000 of this saving has been 
moved to Property to fund initial investigations into potential property developments. Discretionary Rate 
Relief budget is no longer required due to the change to the Business Rates Retention Scheme. 

Performance 
Improvement 

14 14 The Council received a small New Burdens Grant for the administration of Community Rights legislation.  
This funding has been used prudently through the year and enabled a favourable variance of £14k to be 
forecast. 

Support – 
Finance Function 

72  Work on non finance partnerships is currently being contained within original resources. 

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 8



Service Variance to 
date 
£’000 

 (Minus is bad 
news) 

Forecast 
Annual 

Variance 
£000 

Explanation of variance and action planned (including changes from previous month) 

Treasury 
Management 

-5 -11 Additional costs of debit/credit card transactions. 

Salaries -154 -145 Agency staff are being used to help address the Benefits increased workload and to fill vacant posts due 
to the uncertain future caused by Universal Credit. 

 

Future Issues/Risk Areas 
 
 

 
Chief Finance Officer 
February 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 8



Housing – January 2014 Commentary 
 

Service Variance to 
date 
£’000 

 (Minus is bad 
news) 

Forecast 
Annual 

Variance 
£000 

Explanation of variance and action planned (including changes from previous month) 

Private Sector 
Housing 

27 24 Part of the Housing Standards and Energy Conservation Officer is now externally funded which has 
created a short term saving. The Energy efficiency area is 50% of a Housing Initiative Officer post. The 
new structure is now in place and this will take effect in 2014. 

Salaries – Ext 
Funded 

28 37 This external funding and will not affect Council budgets. 

Capital – 
Improvement 
Grants (West 
Kent & SDC) 

199  It is difficult to predict when works will be completed but see below for risk areas. 

Capital – SDC / 
RHPCG 

-36  External funding which will not affect Council budgets.  

 

Future Issues/Risk Areas 
 
It is likely for this year that the DFG budget may be underspent by between £50-70,000 (dependant on resolution of 2 complicated cases). The reason for this is 
the service has been taken in-house from the HIA since December 2013 and will take a few months to be developed and a review will take place November 
2014 to assess the success and whether this continues. 

 
Chief Housing Officer 
February 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 8



Legal & Governance – January 2014 Commentary 
 

Service Variance to 
date 
£’000 

 (Minus is bad 
news) 

Forecast 
Annual 

Variance 
£000 

Explanation of variance and action planned (including changes from previous month) 

Admin Expenses 
– Legal & 
Governance 

15 15 Due to the reduction in Committee reports we anticipate an underspend on internal printing. 

Register of 
Electors 

31 14 The annual canvass has been delayed in 2013 by Government; as a result, fees to canvassers will not be 
paid until March and is estimated to be £15k better than budget. £6.8k is the Government grant for the 
introduction of individual electoral registration; costs have been and are being drawn down. 

Support – Legal 
Function 

17 21 Income generated from s.106 agreements and miscellaneous sources exceeds expectations this year. 

 

Future Issues/Risk Areas 
 
 

 
Chief Officer Legal & Governance    
February 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 8



Planning Services – January 2014 Commentary 
 

Service Variance to 
date 
£’000 

 (Minus is bad 
news) 

Forecast 
Annual 

Variance 
£000 

Explanation of variance and action planned (including changes from previous month) 

Planning – 
Development 
Management 

135 

 

147 

 

It remains the case that the overachievement on fee income is down to a relatively small number of high 
fee applications, including fees of c£58k, c£25k, c£22k, c£20k and c£18k for sites at West Kingsdown, 
Birchwood School, Hartley, Mackerels Plain and The Farmers in Sevenoaks. There is also an underspend 
on pay due to staff working reduced hours, vacancy, and maternity leave.   

Planning -  
Enforcement 

10 9 This is a combination of underspends on salaries and the enforcement legal budget (external) and some 
cost recovery. 

Planning -  Policy -12 -17 The overspend is a result of agency costs to cover staff absence during a critical period preparing for the 
Allocation & Development Management Plan (ADMP) examination.   

Salaries 24 25 The underspend is due to a variety of factors including filling vacant posts, staff sickness, maternity leave 
and an element of part time working. 

Capital – 
Affordable 
Housing 

-342  Met from monies secured by S106 planning obligations. This will be financed at the end of the year. 

 

Future Issues/Risk Areas 
 
The Judicial Review at Forge Field, planning appeals and the ADMP examination.  

 
Chief Planning Officer 
February 2014 

 

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 53

Agenda Item 8



Page 54

Agenda Item 8



Page 55

Agenda Item 8



Page 56

Agenda Item 8



Page 57

Agenda Item 8



Page 58

Agenda Item 8



Page 59

Agenda Item 8



Page 60

Agenda Item 8



Page 61

Agenda Item 8



Page 62

Agenda Item 8



Page 63

Agenda Item 8



Page 64

Agenda Item 8



Page 65

Agenda Item 8



Page 66

Agenda Item 8



Page 67

Agenda Item 8



Page 68

Agenda Item 8



Page 69

Agenda Item 8



Page 70

Agenda Item 8



 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2013/14 – TO THE END OF JANUARY 2014 

Finance and Resources Advisory Committee – 26 March2014  

 

Report of  Chief Finance Officer 

Status: For consideration 

Key Decision: No  

This report supports the Key Aim of  Effective Management of Council Resources 

Portfolio Holder Cllr. Ramsey 

Contact Officer(s) Helen Martin Ext. 7483 

Recommendation to Finance and Resources Advisory Committee:  That the report be 

noted. 

Introduction and Background 

1. This report presents figures on seven internally set performance indicators covering 

activities that support information provided in the regular financial monitoring 

statements. 

 

2. Information is provided on targets for the financial year, and figures for the previous 

year are given for comparison. 

 

3. Use of these indicators assists management in highlighting areas where performance 

has an impact on financial outturn for the authority. 

 

Key Implications 

Financial 

There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

Legal Implications and Risk Assessment Statement.  

Under section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Section 151 officer has 

statutory duties in relation to the financial administration and stewardship of the 

authority. 

 

 

Page 71

Agenda Item 9



 

Equality Impacts  

 
Consideration of impacts under the Public Sector Equality Duty: 

Question Answer Explanation / Evidence 

a. Does the decision being made 

or recommended through this 

paper have potential to 

disadvantage or discriminate 

against different groups in the 

community? 

No The recommendation is concerned with 

sound control of the Councils finances and 

does not directly impact on services 

provided to the community  

b. Does the decision being made 

or recommended through this 

paper have the potential to 

promote equality of 

opportunity? 

No 

c. What steps can be taken to 

mitigate, reduce, avoid or 

minimise the impacts 

identified above? 

 No mitigating steps are required  

 

Appendices Appendix A – Performance Indicators – January 

2014 

  

Adrian Rowbotham 

Chief Finance Officer   

 

Page 72

Agenda Item 9



Finance & Resources Advisory Committee Finance Indicators 2013/14
as at end January 2014

Description target actual notes graph
%

Monthly investment balance £000 39,511 41,755 2,244 5.7% Total investments at month end. 1
From April 2013, precepts are paid in 12 instalments of roughly £5m. (Previous 
years we paid in 10 instalments - not June or December). The target figures 
have been updated to reflect the Balance Sheet position as at 31/03/13.

Average monthly cost per employee (non 
cumulative) £

2,986 2,900 -86 -2.9% Target is annual pay budget divided by budget ftes, figures include agency and 
casual staff. Actuals excludes costs and fte of Agency staff at Dunbrik.

2

Average monthly salary cost SDC £000 1,110 1,043 -67 -6.0% Excludes numbers and costs of Dunbrik temps

Number of ftes 373.2 371.2 -2.0 -0.5% Target is budgeted ftes. 3

Council Tax % collected for 2013/14 90.0 95.4 5.4 6.0% LPIFS 19. Monthly cumulative figures  -

NNDR % collected for 2013/14 90.0 96.9 6.9 7.7% LPIFS 20. Monthly cumulative figures. -

Council Tax payers % on direct debit 72.0 77.1 5.1 7.1% LPIFS8 - % on direct debit 4

Investment return % 0.80 0.73 -0.07 -8.6% Cumulative return on investments. Target is budget assumption 5
3 month LIBID 0.48 0.48
7 day LIBID 0.38 0.38

Sundry debtors: debts over 21 days £000 35 25.742 -9 -26.5% 21 days is taken as the base as the first reminder is issued after 3 wks. 6

Sundry debtors: debts over 61 days £000 20 20.46 0 2.3% 61 days is when the third reminder is issued 7
(debts exclude items on 'indefinate hold', e.g. debtors in administration)

Variance

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 9



Finance & Resources Advisory Committee Finance Indicators 2013/14
as at end January 2014

Graph 1
Actual Target 2012/13

Apr 23,889 25,677    26,996
May 36,321 26,859    27,752
Jun 36,927 34,386    35,108
Jul 36,953 33,973    34,961
Aug 36,621 34,348    34,168
Sep 35,760 32,284    33,202
Oct 37,438 33,935    34,032
Nov 38,226 34,520    32,317
Dec 38,475 39,554    38,373
Jan 41,755 39,511    40,093
Feb 33,253    34,222
Mar 24,975    27,611

Ctax Collected

Actual Target 2012/13 Actual Target
Apr 2,980 2,932 3,056 Apr 11.0 10.0 1137000
May 2,920 2,932 2,841 May 20.4 20.0 1057000
Jun 2,869 2,932 2,674 Jun 29.8 30.0 985000
Jul 2,905 2,932 2,945 Jul 39.3 40.0 1061000
Aug 2,930 2,932 2,976 Aug 48.7 45.0 1077000
Sep 2,951 2,932 2,963 Sep 58.0 55.0 1063000
Oct 3,042 2,932 2,982 Oct 67.8 65.0 1062000
Nov 2,857 2,932 3,041 Nov 77.0 75.0 1100000
Dec 2,861 2,932 3,036 Dec 86.2 80.0 1095000
Jan 2,933 2,932 2,998 Jan 95.4 90.0 1076000
Feb 2,932 2,883 Feb 95.0 1035000
Mar 2,932 3,044 Mar 98.6 1093000

29,246 35,181 12841000

16,000

20,000

24,000

28,000

32,000

36,000

40,000

44,000

£0
00

Graph 1 - Monthly Investment Balance

Actual

Target

2012/13

2,600

2,800

3,000

3,200

£

Graph 2 - Av. monthly cost per employee (excludes 
agency staff at Dunbrik )

Actual

Target

2012/13

Page 74

Agenda Item 9



Graph 3

Actual Target 2012/13 note Dunbrik temps short staff
Apr 376.39 371.75 372 15.6 360.75 11
May 381.86 371.75 372.05 18.1 363.74 8.01
Jun 381.33 371.75 368.31 15.0 366.35 5.4
Jul 377.58 371.75 378.08 15.1 362.5 9.25
Aug 385.15 371.75 382.96 19.9 365.23 6.52
Sep 372.38 371.75 376.98 12.1 360.26 11.49
Oct 370.07 371.75 376.98 12.7 357.35 14.4
Nov 371.23 371.75 375.51 9.6 361.61 10.14
Dec 368.66 371.75 372.71 9.0 359.71 12.04
Jan 371.23 371.75 377.69 15.5 355.72 16.03
Feb 371.75 374.2 0 371.75
Mar 371.75 373.77 0 371.75

312.99 301.1017 70.64833

 

Graph 4 NNDR Collected

Actual Target 2012/13 Actual Target
Apr 77.0 72.0 77.7 Apr 12.3 10.0
May 77.6 72.0 77.8 May 20.6 20.0
Jun 77.6 72.0 77.7 Jun 31.5 30.0
Jul 77.9 72.0 76.0 Jul 41.0 40.0
Aug 78.1 72.0 77.7 Aug 50.3 45.0
Sep 78.0 72.0 77.5 Sep 59.5 55.0
Oct 77.9 72.0 77.5 Oct 69.0 65.0
Nov 77.6 72.0 77.5 Nov 78.3 75.0
Dec 77.3 72.0 77.2 Dec 88.1 80.0
Jan 77.1 72.0 77.4 Jan 96.9 90.0
Feb 72.0 77.9 Feb 95.0
Mar 72.0 76.0 Mar 98.5

360

365

370

375

380

385

390

Graph 3 - Number of ftes
(includes agency staff used on Trading account)

Actual

Target

2012/13

66

68

70

72

74

76

78

80

%

Graph 4 - Council Tax % on direct debit

Actual

Target

2012/13

Page 75

Agenda Item 9



Graph 5

13/14 Fund averageTarget 3m LIBID 7d LIBID 12/13 Fund Average
Apr 0.99 0.80 0.52 0.40 1.14
May 0.90 0.80 0.52 0.40 1.10
Jun 0.91 0.80 0.53 0.40 1.10
Jul 0.87 0.80 0.54 0.40 1.09
Aug 0.85 0.80 0.54 0.39 1.10
Sep 0.82 0.80 0.54 0.39 1.10
Oct 0.77 0.80 0.50 0.38 1.09
Nov 0.77 0.80 0.50 0.38 1.08
Dec 0.75 0.80 0.49 0.38 1.07
Jan 0.73 0.80 0.48 0.38 1.06
Feb 0.80 1.05
Mar 0.80 1.04

Graph 6

Actual 13/14Target 13/142012/13
Apr 34 35 64
May 34 35 46
Jun 24 35 30
Jul 23 35 31
Aug 20 35 40
Sep 19 35 33
Oct 26 35 30
Nov 33 35 23
Dec 31 35 41
Jan 26 35 40
Feb 35 21
Mar 35 39

Graph 7

Actual 13/14Target 13/142012/13
Apr 24 20 26
May 22 20 27
Jun 17 20 24
Jul 19 20 25
Aug 16 20 29
Sep 17 20 28
Oct 15 20 25
Nov 8 20 23
Dec 10 20 20
Jan 20 20 21
Feb 20 24
Mar 20 26

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

%

Graph 5 - Investment Return %

13/14 Fund average

Target

3m LIBID

7d LIBID

12/13 Fund Average

10

30

50

70

£0
00

Graph 6 - Sundry debts over 21 days

Actual 13/14

Target 13/14

2012/13

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

£0
00

Graph 7 - Sundry debts over 61 days

Actual 13/14

Target 13/14

2012/13

Page 76

Agenda Item 9



  

Finance & Resources Advisory Committee Work Plan 2013/14 

26 March 2014  June 2014 September 2014 November 2014 

White Oak Leisure Centre 

Asset Management Strategy 

Provisional Outturn 2013/14 

and Carry Forward Requests 

Financial Performance Indicators 

2013/14 – to the end of March 

2014 

Provisional Outturn 2013/14 

and Carry Forward Requests 

Annual Treasury Management 

Report 2013/14 

Financial Performance Indicators 

2014/15 – to the end of July 

2014 

Financial Results 2014/15 – to 

the end of July 2014 

Financial Prospects and Budget 

Strategy 2015/16 and Beyond 

 

Treasury Management Statutory 

Report 

Review of Service Plans/SCIAs 

Shared Services 

Financial Performance Indicators 

2014/15 – to the end of 

September 2014 

Financial Results 2014/15 – to 

the end of September 2014 

 

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 10



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	3 Actions from Previous Meeting
	6 Establishment of a Local Authority Trading Company Structure
	7 Rural Broadband
	07 Rural Broadband Appendices A and B

	8 Financial Results 2013/14 - To the end of January 2014
	08 Financial Results to end of Jan 14 Appendix part 1 of 2
	08 Financial Results to end of Jan 14 Appendix part 2 of 2

	9 Financial Performance Indicators 2013/14 - to the end of January 2014
	09 Financial Performance Indicators January 2014 Appendix

	10 Work Plan
	11 White Oak Leisure Centre Asset Maintenance - Update
	12 Asset Management Plan Update
	12 Asset Management Plan Update - Disposals Appendix

	13 Investment Strategy
	13 Investment Strategy - Appendix A


